
Planning & Løi ing Commissioti

C l I 10 ORI)17R:

Regular Meeting Minutes

•JLIIV 1, 2014
:3() PM

()xf rd T’o\sn Hall
.\‘lai.n leettng Room

C hairnian [tn a Uarer called the n ‘eting to order at 7:4 PM.

Pt I1)GF OF LLECIANUE:

C hairnian I anya (ar4er led the Pledge ol A legianee,

ROLL. (.LL:

1ent: Chairman I mn a Carser. Vice Chamnnan Jeff I off, Secretary Pat Cocch marella, l’cidd
Romagna, Harold (‘osgrose. rnold Jensen, and Alternate Peter Zhras,

Staff Present: Jessica Pennel I. Aclmm odrat lye Secretary. Anna Rycenga, Zoning Enforcement
)ffic al . and Brian Miller. .\ ICP Fo’ n Planner

( ILlR\IVS REPORT:

( hairntan I’an3 a (‘arver stated that she did not have a report to present.

SE [1M OF I:[ERv1’ES:

C bairman (‘ar er stated that Altem nate Peter thra \ ill he seated fnr Commnm’ooner (Hen Persson.

F \F( 11 1 F SESSION LITIG I ION:

(, emla Ic ()tn H, I [ C ()\ford Planning & Zonmn nimnsmon

\ H ) I H )‘ niH Pat C ocIiiarella ml ee makH1 h\ harold (‘o%rove 1 eitem immt EXE( 1 TI’S F
FSSlON lm u’ pendn litigation tor Glendale at O\f’rd, LLC s O\ford Plannmn & /onmn

num at 7 pm. ote: H es.

I ic t k mg ( omm ismon \lemhem s entered into \ectit m e essmon:

i1\a C t\er, \ ce C Hiimn leif I ulf. Nere1am\ P1t (ieliiamelia. ldd Rmmi:mn,m. I Imold
H Hi’lJ J,’iieii \1 Peter Zhi i

TOWN OF OXFORD
S. 13 (‘htmreh Memorial fo n Flail

4S6 Oxford Road. Oxford, Connectictit O647- I 295
wwwA)xford-CT.gov



I hairnian Carver cafled the meeting hack to order at 7:4k) pm.

L 1)IFNCE OF (1TIZENS (Not for Pending Applications):

( hairman Carver asked br \udience of (‘iti/ens, None.

MEM)MENTS TO GENDA:

( hairman Carver asked (or Amendments to Agenda (if any). None.

(WI) 111 SINESS:

I iairinan (‘arer stated there is no old business.

NEW BI SIN ESS:

1) Z14056 [INDI —119 Hawley Road — Lots 12R, IS, iSA hawley Road — iap: 18
Block: 30 Lots: 12R. 15j5A—Owner & Appaifl5S9hivestmentsLLCc/o
Mark Oc,kowski (Site Plan \pproval for Modification — adding 54() linear feet of
additional road).

/43-057 {LNDI — 119 hawley Road — Lots 12R, IS, ISA Hawley Road — Map: 18
Block: 30 Lots: 1jj— Owner& Applicant: 589 Investments, LLC do
Mark Oc,kowski) (Lot Line Revision).

Z- 144)58 1 INI)1 —Patriot Bustness Park — Lot ISA Hawley Road * Map: 18 Block:
30 Lot: 15A— ner&A ikantX Real ProjçyLLC do Mr. Andreas
hlierzer (Site Plan \pproval fer Industrial Building 99(X)() sq. fL) (Special EXception

rticle I 1, Section 142)

( hairman Carver asked he (‘ominission Members if they had questions or comments.

nna ycenga, LEO stated that the dratt resolution of approval states subdivision hov e’ er it is not a
S ibdivis rn as ss o are site plans and the other is a lot line revision application.

( hairman Cars er isked the Lominision Members if they had questions or comments, None stated.

\10 I ION nade h Secretary Cocchiarella to PPRO’vE applications:

WI11 RE S, the ()sboi d P1 mum & to ung ( ‘ommission has ieceived applic uions

/ I 44 56 IINI)1 119 lIa4ley Road — Lots i2I j5 Ilawleikoad_—Maj2: IS Block: 30 Lots:
I 2R, 15, 15 Owner & pplicant: 589 Inestnwnts, LLC c/n 1ark Oc,kowski (Site Plan
\ppi U ( a \Iodit i at a ii fed ing 54() linear feet ot additional road).

/l44 57 I1ND1 119 hawley Road — Lots i2R,I5. IS 4 1lawley Road Map: iS Block: 3l Lots:
12R 1S 1$ Owner & pplicant: 589 lnestrnents, EEC do Mark Oc,kowski) (Lot I inc

n



L:l44)5$JJiIzLitriot Business Park — Lot 15A IIale’ Road — Map: 1$ Block: 3() Lot: l5—
Owner & pplicant: X Real Property. LLC c/n Mr. .ndreas Flierzer (Site Plan \pproal for

idust 111 Building 99,00() sq. ft) (Special Exception — Article 14, Section 143).

‘ IILREAS, the Public Hearing for these applications was legally noticed in conflrmance v ith
necticut ( ieneral Statutes and Zoning Regulations ot the Town of Oxford;

W HEREAs, the ( )\ford Planning & Zoning Commission has considered the testimony presented at the
Public I {eai ing held on J uR I . 2() 14.

W Ill. R LS. irt ot mat ion on these appi ieat Ions ‘.‘. crc submitted along ‘a ith supporting i ntol mat ion on

Ic ru he Plunn ng & toning Ottice ot the To’.’. n ot O\ ford:

WhERE S, the following plans have been ci nsidered in this decision

I. ver Sheet draw n by Civil 1, Patriot I3usmess Park, flaw Icy Road, last revised June 27, 2014
Sheet I FNustung Conditions

— Sheet 2 Site Plan
Sheet Site Plan. (ii ading Plan. Erosion Control Plan
Sheet - Site Plan. (irading Plan. Erosion Control Plan
Sheet —‘ Site Plan. (ii adinc Plan, Erosion Conti ol Plan
Sheet h P itt 01 \\ .i Road Plan and Profile
Sheet 7 1)rr\ew a Profile — Access Dri\e to I3asin I)

— Sheet S Storm l)ramage Profiles & (‘ross Sections
sheet 9 Details
Sheet 10 Details
Sheet 11 Sanitam\ Sewer Details
Sheet I 2 Li osion ( ‘ontrol Nat raW e

er Sheet di a’.’. n h\ Ci’. ul I \AL, Itie Patriot Business Park. I ha’.’. le Road & (hi st man
Sn cci. last re’. ised June 2. 2014
Sheet I [“.isi inn ( omudmtions
Sheet 2 Site I alan. (ii adu rig Plan. I. iii uty Plan. Erosion Control Plan
Slicer Site Plan, (Iradnig Plan, Erosion Control Plan Phase I

‘ Sheet 1 Dru\eway Profiles
SI eet Slot in Frainage Profiles
Sheet 6 Storm I)uainage Profiles & Cross Sections

,‘ Sheet 1 Storm Drainage Prot iles & (‘ross Sections
‘uccr S Details
Shcet ‘> I )eidils
Sheet Details
Sheet Prc”iui Cnrwi suui,iti’.e

— ot I in Re\ on Map Ii nan h’. Mich ml I Rioudan, I I S foi SSO lnsestmvnt II (‘ ID’.’. I
K at & host in Stwet dated June 26, 0 121 1st te’. ised June 0. 201

Subject to the Miowing comhtions:

nrpIiaii e a ri: tie O\teld /nune Regulations is oi this Jute
Hi icc sd IRI ‘lins ci lie \I’. ii lcc’.c nc all tdc s’u\ tn emust ‘c ‘m’c sd

“. the l’rn’un /i’e Inca ci



A 1” to 200’ Mylar of the modified map must he presented to the Town Assessor which
shoss s the acreage ot each lot,
l he applicant and their assigns must comply with all representations made at Planning
& Zoning (‘ominission meetings or at Public Hearings regarding these applications.
It improvements have not been completed, the site plan epiies after five years from
the date of filing the record map.

6 In accordance with Article 3, Section 3.19.1 of the Oxford Zoning Regulations the
ipplicant will be required to pay all costs of special consultants or studies as deemed
necessary by the Commission at any time during the period from initial re iew through
inspections and final acceptance of any improvements.

7 Compliance with the 1 own of Ovford Ordinances in effect as of this date.
S Pay nient of security in an amount approved by the Planning & Zoning Engineer in a

loi in approved by town Counsel.
9 1 etter from a lmecneJ land surveyor stating that all pins and monuments have been set

is indicated on naps.
10 No substitute matem ial shall be used without appros al of the Planning & Zoning

( oinmmssion and the Planning & Zoning Engineer.
II o burying of stumps or other debris or any other material, a report or receipt must be

provided to the ZEO indicating proper stump removal.
17 \pplicant shall contact the ZE() and Planning & Zoning Engineer to schedule a pre

L onstructmon meting prior to an activity on site.
Seven copies of the revised plans, 3 sets of 24” by 36” and 3 sets of II ‘ x 17”, as
amended in accordance with this motion shall be presented for review by the fon
\ttorney, ZR), Planning & Zoning Engineer and Town Planner and any others
required by the Planning & Zoning Commission, to the Planning & Zoning Office.

11 12” squaie lot signs with eight inch numbers depicting lots must he visible from the

I Mylar to be submitted to the P&Z Staff andlor P&Z Engineer for their review prior to
tom mal vote and acceptance by the Planning & Zoning Commission,

6 \n electronic foi mat of the maps/plans to be presented to the Planning & Zoning
( omnussion.

17 1 he applicant must show proof that any and all legal documents vs inch pertani to these
ipplications (i e , conservation easements, slope easements, rights of ay, etc.) are tiled
m the Oxford Land Records prior to approval and release of the Mylar. A note should

he placed on the Mylar referring to the Volume and Page number.
I S ( ‘ompliance vs mth all the Planning & Zoning Engineer’s reports.
IQ Pm mr to imisiallatmon, lighting must he approved by the ZE() and it must he ll)A Dark

Sky (‘omuplmant
I andscapm ng plan md aix h mtecl nod renderm n mzs must he as presented on the site plan

sam matm us muu’t he approved by the Planning & Zoning Comnimssiori.
( omplm mnce vs mth the t’mrc ( hid’s appros als.
V ‘hmcle ml me imomul smmis stating emitrance and cut am e to he m lear ly mam ked amid s ith no

I itiseme it

Se.ond by (‘onimnissioner (‘osgrove. Vote: l1 yes.

Oxford I’owne (‘enter, 1.LC Project: Oxford
I ovv ii (‘enter (Smtc P1 in \ppi a at momi Phase I

Pa rcclsinLludedinapjjjation:
?7S ()xf id R id l P 31 Bk mk 11 ot II \ & ‘lb



b 3(X) Osford Road —Map: 34 Block: 9 Lot: 26
c 3 Echo Valley Road — Map: 34 Block: 9 Lot EV6
d. 2’4 Otford Road — Map: 34 Bloet 9 Lot: 25 (Owner 274 Oclord Road. I IC)

Portion of 268 Otford Road — Map: 33 Block: 9 Lot: EV4A tOw ncr: Barbara
Scianna)

(hairman Caner asked if there was any correspondence relating to this application.

Jessica Pennell, .%dministrathe Secretary noted the correspondence in the file as follows:

I \pphc.ation.
2 Slot ma ater Management Report dated June 2014 last res iced July 2014.
I Sne Pt ins dated March 1.2014. June 10. 21)14 all resised to Jut> 14 2014.

Anna Rycenga. Zoning Entorceinent OffIcial noted that the application is complete and the fees base
Yin paid.

(halnian (‘aner vked the applicant to proceed with the presentation.

ttorney Dominick Thomas at (‘alien & Thomas Law Firm, Derby CT introduced himself and
h i Led the commission for allowing them to make presentation on the site plan for Phase I. lie stated
hi the pioposed project for phase I includes tI e main anchor store groceiy store), hank. main

hi i les aid. :tc lie noted that the site plan is currently before the Inland Wetlands Commission a ith a
pt.biic hearing scheduled, lie raised a concern a ith the issue of timing and noted that it is not
nwhihi ed, br a project of this site for a tomm ssion to permit the applicant to commence certain site

nk dii ng the tendency fi’ it lie suggested that you may do so by placing an appropriate bond and
ij a omplianc: a ith Inland Wetlands. lie stated that the concern is the eonstniction of the large
r:’a’nmg walls that a ill fonn the surcharge for the pad for the anchor store building. lie noted that that
Ii ‘i g neer will present that to the Commission this evening for consideration for appiosal
cmmntr aively and will tollow up with that once the Inland Wetlands Commission has appros ed the
.j phca 1011

K I. B wgardus, Professional Engineer of Langan Englneeiing & Environmental Services
‘n i du ed himself and stated that this application is for a site plan for Phase I along with the
.rchit:t tural ienderings that demonstrate the des ations. ‘Fhe site plan for Phase I along Route 6 a ill
,n “ide the landscape features and the proposed sidewalk along the a hole frontage along Route 6’.
It on Wy nuances die dictated by Phase I however we are proposing lentnnces along Rome 67

s n ut i the tppr nal of the Ofike of State I taffie kdm,nistration.

Brian Iifler, l(? asked if the Phase I 1’lan k consistent a ith the :c”nceptual plan.

livI. liorgadu,, Pt., st act) .es.

‘mu it> cenga, lEA) stated the Bank a is not included iii the Conceptual Design ft’r P%ase 1.

Ml. tiorgadus. Pit. stated yes that s cotiec.t hoss,ser it was noted dining the (‘onteptual l)esign
c w’n.zs that tb’ phases may ‘serlap hut only the component is changed for Phase I. lie stated thai tile

13 ‘I is r titled iii Phase 1 Sit: Plan ippli aiim lie presented a cross seuit n “1 the houks aid.
it ilti h’ nan ii uks nd wi I ‘onsist , grtrnte uibiniz, Iandsc ipes. t’ ii rite pn vs and nit

I • i s h i’ s ‘i.’ i itorpoiat:d into the tntei t I end ire ‘ny aitratuse intl ins iumz ii >011 .1 e s iIk’ng
fi .in: I “C ilk nor s’oi • (Prite (‘hi•ppen. retail stores A C’ .ire p.111 of Phi e I Site Plan I Ic

4



stattd that Grocery Store a ill consist of 54275 sf, Retail A store is 11.000 sf. Retail B Store is 10.000
‘i. and Retail C’ Store is 7.2(X) ‘S. lie stated that the proposed retail stores represent a hat the market is
.‘ki g or hoyeser there ma> lie come modifications to the silt once the tenant is chosen, lie noted
th .t th:y .s ‘II have to come hack to the Commission for approsal for the use and the modifications if
n ‘t. ssuy lie esplained the need to get darted on the roekery wall and referenced Sheet (‘0201 a kit
the Ri tkery Vail Plan and Profile and the walking trail along Rcho Valley Road which a ill he part of

ase 1

(0mm ssloner (‘eagrove suggested having the ability to walk between the parkmg spaces and feels it’s
a ‘eLy.. )ncenl.

KsIe Rorgadus. P1. stated that we found that many of the plans we are insolsed in especially with a
‘:iocct ictail with carts in practicality howeser when it relates to functionality, it doesn’t work as ad.
lie :p’ained that cars will park in er the walka a> hut if you put in curbing or wheel stops but it
becomes an issue with trip hazards. maintenance and an issue a hen plowing. .lso. customers will load
to tI e icar at their car and this would he an obstruction, He said in his professional esperience this
onc it does caine up in proieets similar to this but we steer away from that specific layout.

Brian SIllIer, iliP stated that there are many commercial developments a ith walkways that go
trom,l the parking lots and we am trying to emphasize and encourage pedestrian orientation and
it ilitton llestatedthathehasnotreviewedtheplanstodate.

(nnmlssloner (‘ocehiarefla stated that on Sheet (‘S lot labeled Site Plan A it does note that there ate
cut c xrals proposed.

(ommissioner L.uft asked if there are any deselopments of this silC in nature that hase ihe walkways
throuizb the parking lots.

Brian Iiller, AlCP stated that Stop & Shop in Cheshire. CT and Walmart in Wallingford. CT. lie
itotd t tat he would pros ide some details by researching that information for the commission.

Commissioner (‘osgrove stated that Target in nsonia is an enmple.

Commissioner I uff stated that he does not find it practical and agiws with the applicant, lie stated the
5k mcts will tust place the ai1s in walkway.

Steve l)ufl, lce President of Price (‘hopper introduced himself and stated for piacticality puiposes
d t n t sork. lie stated that customeis will place their tarts on the ramp and the abandon them.

istomers will not hack their car into the parking space just to utilii’c the pedestnan walkway. It
sn’t inik nr lunction

Commissioner (‘osgrove staled it .iill he lewl.

“itcn l)ufl3 s’at:d thai as Ks te liorzzadus indicated the cars WI I park os er the ssalkw a> and a ill tieate
;tt nei han.z l’h ‘n it’s suggested to introduce .t wheel stop hut that presents all kinds of liability

cs s pIe all tnp owr them. He stated that there is lititiation eserywheie regatdinit :his lie
t’ It tat he other negatise impact is that we will diminish the number of parking spots. It was noted

‘t p tir sins iw tosidin.t i clear easy accessible and generous p irking lot lie stattd that we
I’ tile to pit side cons ‘nicnt p1 tees to park icr our.. ustomeis lie stated hat in his

I in I ‘ pinion and its arccr he has lone ncr si’ser il h mdi I h,iilhnts simil it to this in C)
I ‘ ,I ‘hat it’s i re it ‘ oncent ‘itt they .iic not fitnetic nil

I



Commissioner Coegrove inquired if Handicap Parking spaces are proposed.

Sine Duib stated yes. He stated that Price Chopper provides a service to bring the groceries to the car
nil is in amenity. lie noted that that is across the chains and all the states and is their protocol.

Ky Ic Borgadus, P.E. asked the Commission if they had any questions regarding the proposed
Id netit’n of the site plan for Phase I.

Brian tiiler, AICP asked if a by pass line is proposed.

Ky It Borgadus, P.E. stated lit) a by pass is not proposed.

(ommissloner (‘aigrove asked Kyle Borgadus to elaborate in the areas of the dnve-up phaimacy mid
‘. cl”taeas

Ky Ic Borgadus. P.E. discussed the parking and recycling areas.

Brian Sillier, .IICP asked how many cars will be piled up for the drive through pharmacy.

Kyle Borgadus, P.E. stated there is room for a 4 ears stacking in that area. lie noted that you ‘hill not
:ei deep cucing like a Dunkin 1)onuts.

Brian Sillier, 1VP asked about the rewne vending parking spaces.

Kyle Borgadus. P.K. stated that is tar the recycling center.

(ommissloner (‘osgrove asked s hat the hours of operation are for the grocery store and if there s ill
pent inent lighting on the flag pole.

Kyle Borgadus. P.K. stated yes and it will he lit for 24 hours as that is proper protocol.

%teie l)uf1 suited the hours of operation for the grocery store will be 24 horns a day and 7 days a
vetk

(hairman tuner asked it Phase I will consist of less disturbance along Echo Valley Road area.

Kle Borgadus. P.E. sa tied that due to the topography that they are trying to creaie mammal amount of
st ubinc on itt, however the sate is disturbed. lIe stated that they will have to stabihtie the site and
lh re to the pr posed plantingllands.aping plan.

Brian SillIer. l(? stated his onern i the unloading of the :ruck related to operatu’ns.

KIe Bmgadus, PY. discussed the I ading and uploading tperttions intl landw iping ‘ci ‘ening. lie
t tI t tat the I ii retaming wills break up the mass of the rocker> walls.

( hairman (‘airier stated that it is important to note that people are going to utiliie the walkways and
s ‘kttebt aid

Kile Borgadus, I’.i. presented the le’.auon .f the retanumi ills.

Brian SillIer. I( 1’ ‘a1iae%ted the :i.s auo rendcr’iie lv “art ‘1 ilk’ ieorI.



4nna Rycenga, ZEO asked Ky Ic if he could elaborate morn on the rockery wall and the height of the
tent ning walls and to make the clear for the record that the parcels ha’e not merged to date.

ittorney Dominick Thomas stated that the woe can be laid over multiple parcels and Phase I consists
t I pucels eeept 274 O’cford Road, LW. The only piece that is not owned by some entity related to

(hi wd Fm ne (‘enter, LII’ is piece labeled Sc anna. lie stated that the contractual agreement that we
has with Scianna is subject to appioval of the Concept Plan (approsed) and Phase I — Site Plan
ippros il lie a ited a Mylar of the entire parcel and ‘one boundary will be created and filed. fhe
(hInd Yard & Masonry Supply ssill quit claim its interest in the property t3 Echo Valley Road & 274
(hfo, ii Roadi to O’ford ro ne Center, LLC’.

nna Rycenga, ZE() stated that the just so the record is clear the oseday tone is already approsed
l’t w’ cr, the Mylar will not be filed in the Oxford Land Records until Phase I — Site Plan is approved.

¾ttorney Dominick thomas stated yes hut the M)lar recording is also dnven by their anticipated
lmanci g. lie noted that once the map is recorded it will become one parcel.

inns Rycenga, flO suggested a condition of approsal to merge the lots of this Phase I - Site Plan.

Brian Illler. iltP agreed hut also suggested an establishments of cross easements.

itbiney Dominick thomas stated yes.

I immissloner Lull asked what time frame to complete Phase 1- Site Plan.

Kyle Borgadu.s, P.R. stated appro’umately 12 months.

Kyle Borgadus. P.R. stated that the wall will be a rockery wall that k an engineered design by their
‘irn’.

inns Ry cenga, ZEO suggested as a condition of .ippros al that a structural engineer pros ide a kiter to
t’itify it is stiucturally sotmd. [he Commission Members agreed.

Kyle Horgadus, P.R. stated that they can pros ide that to the Commission and the height of the walls
it • ict vc’en 10-12 fret but changes with the elevations.

(‘ommissioner (‘osgrose staled that the height of the wall requires a special exception.

inna Rycenga. tiD stated per the (hford Zoning Regulations, .rticle 3 General Ret!ulauonc. Section
4 2’ I:nccs & Walls it ‘tales:

tin i .,‘i t flack ic quir. ?ncnt if tin st rc s,dations shall not be tic nu d toprolubit cure tic rnsary
, , dli pp nba un It n c ir s• all, press idc .1 that in a re sick nut 1 dntr ci. ‘to it ill or It nrc

I ci in hci ;It, ,ncasurc s ubewc the qrcd.’ at the friar o the finer or tic ii esccpt then no
i it r S t in roni aid setback sI’aii c set c’S tour te it in heiqist in an re suit mmii district bar

I •‘ ‘gists it lcd is aiim 4w Re s dt nutS f loll (‘onununuus’ l)istru I (‘vimnen gal, Ptcinnc S
I ii e. I” ii. sit ai. i’ciiiiu S Dc • it ‘puwnu inS (‘csqvirata lhcsnwss I)istnc u ilic C ‘c n’nns sian. .,u its
. . i’. .flh e. urn : • •‘nstr,c tic .01 si . n t.aning null ,n c.h? fi’cur sh Ice tIn h i.9u. m’s,

i. • ,,. ,,, ,•,j

• i : ., • •‘ • ‘. su’. : ‘ •‘ cj, sbr

3



2. ‘Sot be kirisnental to the ae.sth.etie qualities qfthe propoced project and the Tonn in general
.l. b ‘u £ esw to grade the property in compliance with the intent qfthcse Regulations.

it (‘ inni s.s on may require the installation of fences br ,tall.s greater than sh feet in height, jfk
I t ring?,’ s that it Ls in cded lbr the protection ot’public .safett in thLc detcnn,nation. the Commic.slon
‘(4: ,g i..m that the it all be con.structed in accordance with the cpeciflcations and plain at a iicen.sed
,tr’s viral mcmi t r. the inctallation offencing at the top ofthe wall, or cure oilier sin Ii measures that it
U tem nnn s s mutes cars to protect public .cajctt

Chairman Caner noted that the town engineer will restew the proposed roekery wall along with the
11th tor an .idininistratis e appros al. The C’oinmission agreed.

Kyle Borgadus, P.R. stated these rockery walls are similar to the walls at Meadow Brook L.states
‘inn 2nd) lL stated that the> will install fencing as the building code also requhes it. lie stated that

Ic tencinu will be transparent.

(ominLssioner (‘osgroe asL’d about sewer and water and ‘aid there doesn’t appear to be enough
admii dcx ks proposed.

K31e Borgudus. P.R. stated that the loading docks proposed are sufficient.

Steirn Duftv. ‘Sice President of Price (‘hopper agreed.

Is> le Borgndus, P.R. stated that sewer and water ends at West Street at rummy K’s Plan and
R ‘laiido’s.

Kjle Borgadus, P.R. presented a cross section for the proposed bciulesard that will consist of a grand
‘rtranw to the wnter with gtanite curbing cm the edges and islands. lie stated that the landscaping

gun’s in tht i uddle will consist of a continuous band of sculptwed rocks. Sidewalks are also
‘u po%’d ah’ng the boulesard with concrete pasers.

nna R>cenga, LEO asked if there were an> traffic calming des ices proposed such as speed humps.

Kyle Borgadus, P.l. stated no

Pat (‘ucehiarella suggested sutilcient additional landscape screening along the ‘maIler parking lot
1’ 5

Kyle Rorgadus, P.R. stated that is noted.

Brian ‘SillIer. .%ICP stated that IS an es clIent point.

I dd Romagna skeditth r’wasanyt>pe )f nyto ‘nsuiethecarts u’errstnctedtotwpaikin’
at

‘des en lhills. ‘Slee President of Price (‘hopper stated that are technique’ to place on ‘lie tart’ to
o e t th ‘ii I ri m temote. teas bitt the> ate more psoblematic. lie stated that those tipes ol te hniqt es

I t than ueas to peesent them (tom getting stolen or end up in the rim te ireas. lie m tc LI
it (hey ) is ‘ tits i ‘4ul.uh and nsurc the> ire maintained, lie feels thes i v mote pit hI matt



Pat Cocehiarella stated that newly constructed T J. Maxx in Waterbury has the “Carttionics” and the
issue s that all the carts get stacked up m one location because they can’t surpass a certain point. He

esn t thmk it’s appropriate br this project.

Jeff I tiff stated that the bamer is Route 67 due to the size of the site as t’s isolated.

I mu Haynes, Ilaynes Development stated during the design development stages we placed the cart
ii ils loser to the inchor store and Price (‘hopper is ill manage the store, carts, trash, etc.

ttorney Dominick Thomas of Cohen & Thomas Law Firm stated that Price Chopper will maintain
I arts

Kyle B rgadus. PE. stated that although the project is intended to he deseloped in phases as outlmes
0 ei1pluatwn materials, the report has been prepared to address the stormisater management tor the

nine build ut rt the project as well as the interim conditions. lie noted that it has been designed in
i L nec is ith the Zoning Regulations, 2004 CT Storrnwater Quality Manual, and the 2000 (‘F DOT

I) a nage M inual lie stated that hydrologically, the site is located is ithin the Little River drainage
sisin, i ti ibutary to the Nauiatuck Riser ‘a atershed. lie stated that the proposed system Incorporates

quit icu t storniwater qua itv measures and maintains or decreases the rate of runoff br all storm
s ants in dyzed.

I lar old Cosgro e asked about pat king is ithin Phase 2.

t. hairman fanya Carver stated that Phase 2 is not part of this application.

nna Rycenga, LF() noted that the I>arking Management Plan is as submitted with the Conceptual
‘Ii i hi t ht wes ‘r it was not specific and detailed, She requested a detailed Parking Management Plan
ic submitted is ith this application

Kyle Borgadus, P,E. stated he will submit the plan as requested.

Jefi I nIt isked it the is alkis ays is ill consist of lighting, lie stated that it’s important to ensure that i is

it Icc i i s stety prospectise. I he (‘ommission Members agreed to ensure the final plan reflects the
‘a i k says ire p ‘opcily lit

( hairnian (‘arver stated br the tecord the (‘oinmission will approse the proposed rockery is all.

nna R cenga, LEo that the town cngmeer ‘a ill review the proposed rocket y is all along is ith the LEO
i cli nistiativ’ approval

ttorney Dominick [homas tequested that the administrative appi oi il fot the t o kei y wall by the
ii i rti cci ud the LEt) await for the hland Wetlands appros il

( in t ii i Members igrc’ed.

( hairman I anya 0 ars er c quested a 10 minute recess at 9’ 1 5 pm

( hairman I any a (‘arser c ilk’d the Ri. ‘ Oar \Iceting Back to Order at 9 2 pm

I ony menta ii menta rchitects nit odui 0 h tins ‘II and discussed the u hitec tot il i e idc’i in is t oi
M \ ( uid the 1 a ik



Bnan IilIer. AIUP asked if the proposed renderings included a tool kit w ith written descriptions ot all
he matenal s proposed for each bit tiding.

1on rnenta of inenta Architects stated that all the materials are listed for resiew and are e\hihits
i the record.

lon inenta of Anienta Architects stated the lead grocer has their proposed architectural design\
ii protoi’ pe I herefore, we had to mi’c the architectural design with their proposed design. He
c m m nded that the architectural design for retail stores A-C and the hank he appros ed by staff.

niia R4 ccna. LEo stated that she disagreed w ith proposed administrat 1’. e appro’. al for the
iitecturai design br the retail stores A-C and the batik as that pur tew falls within the jurisdiction of

1 i. ( om mssion She also noted that each building permit, use, signage, architectural design, etc. will
e o .. o’ne back betore the Commission, She suggested that if Phase I is appros ed that that be a

odirion of approval.

Brian iillcr, AI(P stated he would like to discuss the signage.

tton e Dominick ihomas stated at the next meeting we will pro’. ide a more detailed plan with si/es
0 iti lot ation elI

Brian ‘IilIer. I(’P stated that it’s important to realite that there are no sign regulations and no set
i tdards ii this ione lie requested that the standards he submitted as pail of Phase

\nna Rycenga. LL’() stared that at the preapplication meetings the prelinnnar plans reflected project
at unitis w it h stone work and found that to he ‘. cry attractive on Retail Stores A—C fhe Commission

Me uhers areed

fon menta of \mentu Architects discussed the architectural tenderings for the hank. lie noted that
etc is a tenant howe’. er ihe\ w ill come hack for the architectural details.

lat ( ocehiarella stated that he finds the anchor store to he attracti\ e with all the earth tone colors hut
a neernLd with the aichitectural renderings for OTC Bank lie finds the preliminary renderings (or
I e an k to hc stark with the white color and contrasts with the proposed anchor store.

[on .nwnta taied that i he anclu r stoic renderings are ‘. er. spec i tic hut as tenants are secured they
a II uine in wi h the plans.

ttorney Dominick [honias stated that during the conceptual plan submittal there weie aai ions
at ‘nc t ic a .rs uitl standards that were submitted howe’. er the .ire working with a s gn eon sit Itant

a ni.ttis and will have that for the next meeting.

nna R conga, lEO) m ted ii it ii tier \i tic Ic (s \‘ ii loge (‘enter Mixed (‘5’ I)isti ict, S ‘ct it iii ( 4 (it

I tidi ta 1 ‘ithfe .1 0 ![/1 .1/? it 101/ fin Inc UI)! (iI(I flY O?t C ‘lltIllhtI(ni. 1so d 1/001 tt: ii

)i op J I /opmt iii, itj’c 7 otot pro/mci ii, icot’ut of 1170 propott d 111011 tOrt t, it la1it from
i ( - 1 1 ii 11111 It flititft ft It (ii t it lift nt t/ this it im1tition flit %iliU1 it approt ttl 1m tilt
a ii a 1 ‘a nit a’a it It.! it/tin tl tifipro. d ;t i1 ‘on

Brian Miller, \l( P o ited h a ts a ‘.iim.’n of ippr .il .1 nc ‘pi .tcs,en p1 in



Brian Miller, UCP requested clarification to the applicant is to truck the grocer independently of the
it irhe butldmg.

l’mn Hay nes stjed that he is wnrking with the lenants for Retail Stores AC. He stresed that once the
ants ire sec tied they wall be hack before the commission for approal. l’he grocer is expected to e

by Juls 2) 5 therefore our time frame is tight. He stated

Harold Cosgrove isked who w ill he the owners of the building for Price (Thopper

I in H tynes stated ilaynes wall he the owner for everything and are negotiating the leases.

( hairnian l’anya Carver asked it there are any other questions.

Hat old (. osrove asked abut t the architectutal renderings for Price (‘hopper.

Steven Huffy, ice President of Price Chopper introduced himself arid stated that we can’t disclose
ir nan e or brand yet and presented the elevations of the proposed store. He stated that the front

s ition vi I not change with the ground stone found on site at the base, Prodema wood along the
I iiC I tout of the store, and ‘vertical wood slabs of the pharmacy, IThe side will consist of stucco and

pbo ud b low it lie discussed the enti ies to the store, Starhucks, bottle return and the pharmacy. lie
a te I ti at the stoic wall he a 24 hour roeer facility and the pharmacy will have a drive through. lie
a ‘at I tl at the p1 at macy will have no more than i one care in cue at ihe drive through and the duration

i ew miii ites lie noted that they have 5 operational pharmacies right now and that’s the cue time

Steen Dully list ussed the proposed signage on the buildings. He thanked the Commission.

Pat (‘ocehiarella asked about the pond adtacent to the pharmaLy.

Kyle Borgadus, P.E, stated that it is a storinw ater quality structure.

ium Rycenga, LEO noted for the record that the paoposed hank was not part of the ( ‘oneeptual Plan
hise I however, it was noted st the (‘onceptual Plan meetings that some phases may oserlap.

I a.’ ( o mu saon Members agreed

nna Rycenga, lEt) asked about the detailed proposed signage on Route 67 It was noted that a
e a let plai s would be submitted at the next meeting,

ttorney Dominick thomas stated that the exhibits will remain with the tile for the next meeting and
cpa’ ted ta. base the expert repoit pi aor to the meeting for res iew lie stated that it the (‘omanission has

a. tao as p1 is funnel the questa us thr uh st iff so we can address at the next ineetang. lie thanked
(ii imassaon

( haim man I’anva (‘iar er i ked t i C an nassion at the\ had my ther qiaestaoaIs. mm nih or
1 15 4 ii teed

( hal rman l’anya Cars er it’ gusted i I S in anute access at It) dO pm

( hairnmaaa I au a (‘ar er aIled t lie Reaular Meeting Back to Order at 1 ft I ‘a pm



B()NI) RELEASES:

I.) Oxford Greens — Pulte homes Phase Ill — Surety Bond # 8195-39-38 — Performance Bond
Request for Bond Release) T4BLEI) (Referred to Town Engineer)

1. ()iord Greens — Pulte Homes Phase II & III Letter of Credit # DBS — 18769 — Soil &
Erosion Bond Request for Bond Rektase TABLED (Referred to Town Engineer)

TuNed..

3.) Li 14)57 IINI)l C.EJ), Services, Inc 3 Fox hollow Road
(Request.s fOr Bond. Release) TABLED (Referred to ZEO)

lIod.

4.) Lakeside Estates The DSA Companies — Maintenance Bond #98-1388 (Request for Bond
Release TABLEF) (Referred to Town Engineer)

Tableeh

/ONING ENFORCEMENT:

The ZEO presented the following to the Commission:

I etter dated J ulv 5. 2014 from Anna R\ centa. LEO to JoceR n Tnrcott — 56 Park Road
207 O\t’ord Road (Post Office Roloc:ition)

Anna Rycenga, LEO noted that she issued an administrative approval through the Chairman for the
pest office use penn it located at 2Q O\ford Road. She presented the app! ication and use permit for
[e\ e. [he Commission Iemhers agreed eli the approval and had no issues.

A.pril

2014 Monthly A.ctivity Report
\ la 2014 Monthl Actl\ t\ Report
Letter dated June 23, 2014 from John 1)t B mso & Letter dated June 25. 2014 regarding
Meadowbrook Estates. (16. signatu.re.s from MB.E residents).

\nna R cenga. LEO stated that e\ cml eoinine-son members alked the site and the areas of concern
end sh \ni!d like to co through tent h tern on each letter.

etter dated June 2.3, 2014 from John Di,B iaso of I 009 White. Birch Lane. Oxford, CT in summary:

Reedenbui Dn e a at I ( iOO ‘\ bite l3trch Lane not pa ed.

White Birch Lane is scheduled to h paved and the residential driveway at 1009 White
Birch i,ane. ,nna Rvccnta. LEO also noted a French drain as uRn added to catch
storm ate r ru nil.

\3.4 [White Birch I .,anc,



The Commission felt the 20 feet vidth of White Birch Lane was adequate vhich includes
the 52 feet turn around radius per Scott Pelletier, Fire Marshal.

3 \dditinnal residen0& dwell mgs (3) 1 single and 2 attached would he built on a severe slope.

the Commission lembers visited the site and determined they can’t take action at this
time as we do not have a pending application. Once a pending application is received they
will send it to the town engineer for review and consideration.

I tter dated Line 25, 201 1 froni residents at Meadow Book Estates, John DiBiaso of 1 (X>9 White Birch
I at’, ( vh id, ( I in summary:

\dditional iesidential dwellings 3), I single and 2 attached ss ould he a safety haiard on a
lid1 ‘d Lhiseway.

\gain, the (‘ominission Membeis visited the site and determined they can’t take action at this
1 me as we do not have a pending application, Once a pending application is receised they ss ill
send it to the toss ii engineer for res tew and consideration.

Pat Coechiarella stated that upon his site visit he spoke with a resident, Susan \rpm and she
strt ssed concern over her lawn, woodchips and the overgrown vegetation on the slopes at
White Birch Lane lie felt these were all IIOA issues.

tuna Rycenga, ZEO stated that we do not want to remose any segetation on site as they will
destahiliie the slope.

2 One driveway at X hite Birch Lane has not been fully paved.

White 13 irch I ane is scheduled to be paved and the residential driveway at I 00) White Birch

3 Ii aft ic with heavy equipment going up and down Meadoss brook Road foss ned by the I IOA)
s hich has caused cracks, tread marks, oil spills, and uneven pasement

\rma Ryc enga, LEO suggested that a video tape be taken of the current road conditions for
dot umentation of Meadossbrook Road. She stated this was the case ss ith (hford Greens
m ‘sidcnts is they had the same concern for their roads.

I me ( c s mission Members igrecd.

I he tape did not record from this point forward.

( i 11 ill R id nO ii ‘e I k commodate the iess st r UL non for the at’ St H t is

am ii t I mu ph ist’

nna Rycenga, LEt) iv ted th it they do hac 2 points of egress and ingress, One is in Osloo
m m I the ther is in Seymour hoss es em this is wit hin the Commission’s pm v icss

I ( m ssion \I ‘amber s mci d it w is not neLessam y o nsO tic I the 2 ntm uv am ()vtoi d



nna Rvcenga. LEo noted that the construction debris has been remo\ed and the stockpiles
m m tin on silt. \ct. ot dine to tht. 2002 F&S (,uid. tnt. s I ths irc not distut bul tot 0 d i\ s

then thes have to temporarily stabilize the stockpiles

The (A.mmission Members did not see an issue with the. stockpiles or ohs.e.rve any construction
debris ott site that was unsightly or uorderlv.

6. Ihe positions ol some dri\ et a\ s in the nets section are difficult to enter and e\it.

Chairman Tanya Carver stated that she drove on several of the driveways in the new section
arid Ound the driveways to he extremely tight with the turning radius hut did not see any issues.
The Commission \Teinhers agreed.

7 One es it going in and out of Meado\hrook Road md concerned for residents to evacuate in
c.ase of emergency.

The Commission Members noted there are 2 points of egress and ingress to the communit.

S. \\ hen I la Ties starts the Quarr\ project can the be assured the last section of Meadot brook
Estates will he finished and continue Meadowbrook Road through to Great H ill Road?

The Commission Members noted that there is no guarantee as the statutory time frames provide
su ftc tent time to complete the project or not as site plans expire.

0. \\ctlands issues need to he addressed ‘s here the bridge is.

The Commission noted that is not within their purview and to contact the Inland Wetlands
Department. The Commission Members agreed.

Chairman Tans a Carver requested a letter and copy of the minutes are sent to the Home Ot ncr’s
Association Or Meadowbrook Estates and John DiB taso.

çORRESPONDENCE

a. ice of \onLxiension of Letter of Credit for Pulte Group Inc.

b.) Letter dated July 1 )() 4 from Susan Kope.c Jutcawit, Request fbr remaining ••4airHenance
13 id (I?efr to Town !flç’incer)

c ) Jt dated July 3, 2014 Corn Arnold M. Karp of First Oxford House. LLC
Re, Rcuueo for B nd Rclca\e iRe/er to LEO).

nii I kt.i n t /1 () iii d rid I is r thL ispht iL p iikiii sp k p rit ii /uIlitL.
Certi Ocate of Compliance. w.as is sued.



I. citer from Brennan’s Shehecn to fanya Carver, Chairman.

Anna Rycenga, ZFX) stated that Brennan’s Sheheen is seeking to have outdoor live acoustic music
mom 3 1 pm on Sundays and would like to modify their use permit. She noted that she would have to

oR the State ol CT Liquor License to serify live music and consult v. ith the Fire Marshal to ensure
hem e ai e no satety concerns.

niia R cenga, LEO stated that she notified the o ners of l3rennan s Sheheen that Lhey have to came
if ihe patio area. She stated that the Fire Marshall signed off on the Certificate of Occupancy and

l ould not has e. I lowevet, they has e made arrangements to gate off the patio. Also, parking on the
cek r ds have been a concern.

I’at Cocchiarclla stated that if you pull out of Gos ernors I lilt Road onto Route 67 the customers for
cnnan Shchecn are parking on the crass along Route 67 and it blocking a sitc line.

iina R3 cdnga, LEO stated that the parking area s as preexisting to the regulation change
equiremcnms for parking based on the building and use,

( ( EPT(E OF MIM’TES:

\la 1 3. 21)14 Public I learing Minutes — I’he flurlev Group

\IO liO made harold (‘osgroe and seconded by Jeff Luff to APPROVE May 13, 2014 Public
II amni Minutes lThc Ilurley Group. Vote: 1l Ayes.

\Ia 27, 2014 Public hearing Minutes - Oxford Town Center

\l() IlO> made Harold (‘osgrove and seconded hs Jeff Luff to ,lLROVE May 27. 2011 Public
F learmne \l immute’, Osford To n Center. \ote: All Ayes.

I’s VOICES:

I s owe # 1 76 14 from Nafis & Young Engineers.

‘do Fl( )‘\ made Harold (osgro e and seconded b Jeff Luff to PPROVE Ins oice I Th- I 4 from

is s YOLinC Eninccrs ‘ ote: ll Axes.

1w ‘mee I mm l cci & Kon l shmn, P.C. for Oxford Commons Gam den I bmw.

\IO I hON made Harold (‘osgroe and seconded by Jeff Luff to PPROVE Invoice trom Micci &
bun, P ( I i ox C r I (‘urn muons Card n F bmw. Vote: \ll yes.

1)1 HER HI SINE 55

\ns tiler unsmncss time (‘,mmmis’ion deems meccsar\ fur discussion.

( ban i an Fans a (‘arer s tied that tithe next Reculam ‘dcc dug on \u,.,ust . 201 n ml schedule a
I rim I m t \Ioritom tim ii Medicinal \iariimian’m,



UP(ONII\G EVEN US/MEETINGS:

None stated.

\iOTI()N made Pat (‘ocehiarella and seconded by Jeff Luff to APPROVE to ADJOURN the
RcuIar Mcetin at 11:05 PM. Vote: All Ayes.

RcpCt1uII\ utmtted.

aL/

Penned.
\dm nstia1 ive Secretary

Piannin& & Zonmg Commission




